# **ORIGINAL**

## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. <u>SCOU-1082</u>

THOMAS D. HALL
MAY 2 2 2000
CLERK, SUPREME COURT

FTT m

## PATRICK MATCHETT

Petitioner,

-vs-

#### STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, THIRD DISTRICT

## **BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION**

BENNETT H. BRUMMERPublic DefenderEleventh Judicial Circuit of Florida1320 N.W. 14th StreetMiami, Florida 33 125(305) 545-1961

LISA WALSH Florida Bar No. 9646 10 ROBERT GODFREY Florida Bar No. 0 162795 Assistant Public Defenders

Counsel for Appellant

#

#### INTRODUCTION

This is a petition for discretionary review on the basis of express and direct conflict of decisions, Petitioner, Patrick Matchett, was the defendant in the trial court and the appellant in the Third District Court of Appeal; the Respondent, State of Florida, was the prosecution in the trial court and the appellee in the Third District Court of Appeal. In this brief of petitioner on jurisdiction, all references are to the appendix attached to this brief, paginated separately and identified as "A", followed by the page numbers.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Mr. Matchett was convicted on four counts following a jury trial. (A. 2). On Count 2, the trial court imposed an upward departure sentence. (A. 2).

After the Third District Court of Appeal issued its decision in Mr. Matchett's appeal, Mr. Matchett filed a timely motion for rehearing. (A. 1). The Third District denied the motion for rehearing, but granted clarification of its original opinion, withdrew its original opinion, and issued another opinion in its place. (A. 1).

Before the Third District Court of Appeal, Mr. Matchett argued that the departure sentence had to be reversed because the trial court never filed a written order setting forth the basis for the upward departure. (A. 2). The Third District disagreed, holding that the "claim regarding the trial court's failure to file a written

order setting forth the basis for the upward departure sentence on count two is not preserved. <u>See Weiss v. State,</u> 720 So. 2d 1113, 1115 (Fla. 3d DCA 1998), review\_granted, 729 So. 2d 396 (Fla. 1999)." (A. 2).

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This case is controlled by this Court's recent decision in *Maddox v. State*, Nos. 92805, 93000, 93207, and 93966, 2000 WL 565093 (Fla. May 11, 2000). There, the Court reaffirmed that defendants may raise fundamental sentencing errors on direct appeal. *Id.*, slip op. at 5,9, 12. The entire failure to file statutorily required written reasons for departure is fundamental error that requires remand for the imposition of a guidelines sentence, regardless of whether the error was preserved in the trial court. *Id.*, slip op. at 35-37.

The Third District's reliance upon *Weiss v. State* was misplaced because it ignored the crucial difference between *Weiss* and the instant case – in *Weiss* the written reasons for departure were filed, albeit three days late, while here written reasons for departure were never filed. As explained in *Maddox*, a late filing of written reasons for departure does not constitute fundamental error, slip op. at 38-39, while the total failure to file written reasons causes a "qualitative effect on the integrity of the sentencing process" and thus does constitute fundamental error which can be raised even in the absence of preservation. *Id.*, slip op. at 37-38.

#### ARGUMENT

THE DECTSTON BELOW EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THIS COURT'S DECISION IN *Maddox v. State*, Nos. 92805, 93000, 93207, and 93966, 2000 WL 565093 (Fla. May 11, 2000); WITH THIS COURT'S DECISIONS IN *Pope v. State*, 561 So. 2d 554 (Fla. 1990), and *Ree v. State*, 565 So. 2d 1329 (Fla. 1990), BOTH OF WHICH WERE REAFFIRMED IN *Maddox;* AND WITH THIS COURT'S DECISION *IN Donaldson v. State*, 722 So. 2d 177 (Fla. 1998).

In *Pope v. State*, 561 So, 2d 554 (Fla. 1990), this Court held that where there was a departure sentence with no written reasons, the appellate court "must remand for resentencing with no possibility of departure from the guidelines." *Id.* at 556. In *Ree v. State*, 565 So. 2d 1329 (Fla. 1990), this Court stressed the fundamental importance of written reasons for departure, explaining that "a departure sentence is an extraordinary punishment that requires serious and thoughtful attention by the trial *court.*" *Id.* at 1332. In *Maddox*, this Court affirmed the holdings in *Pope* and *Ree*, concluding that passage of the Criminal Appeal Reform Act [section 924.05 1, Florida Statutes (Supp. 1996)] did not change the underlying policy reasons requiring the filing of written reasons for a departure sentence.

We conclude that for defendants who did not agree to the imposition of a departure sentence in a plea agreement, the policy reasons for correcting a departure sentence in which the trial court failed to file statutorily required written reasons for departure are still

applicable following the Act. We conclude that this statutory omission is an important one that affects the integrity of the sentencing process concerning the critical question of the length of the sentence.

Maddox, slip op. at 36-37, 2000 WL 565093 at \*17.

Here, the Third District did not recognize any difference between filing written reasons late and not filing written reasons at all. Instead, citing to its decision in *Weiss v. State*, 720 So. 2d 1113, 1115 (Fla. 3d DCA 1998), *review granted*, 729 So. 2d 396 (Fla. 1999), the Third District refused to grant Mr. Matchett relief because the claim concerning the trial court's failure to file written reasons for departure was not preserved. A. 2.

In *Weiss*, however, unlike here, written reasons for departure were filed. The argument in *Weiss* was that resentencing was required because the trial court filed written reasons for its departure three days later than allowed by statute. 720 So. 2d at 1114. The Third District held that, even if a "technical error" had occurred because of the late filing, it was not cognizable on appeal under the Criminal Appeal Reform Act because it was not preserved. *Id.* at 1115.

In *Maddox*, this Court approved the Third District's decision in *Weiss*. "We agree that when written reasons for imposing a departure sentence were filed late, this late filing does not constitute a fundamental sentencing error if the defendant

was not hindered in his or her efforts to challenge the grounds for imposing the departure sentence on direct appeal." *Maddox*, slip op. at **39**, 2000 WL 565093 at "18.

As explained in *Maddox*, however, there is a significant difference between a case such as Weiss where written reasons were filed late and a case such as Mr. Matchett's where written reasons were never filed at all. "In our opinion, while there is a qualitative effect on the integrity of the sentencing process when the trial court fails to file any written reasons for imposing a departure sentence, this same concern is not present when the written reasons are filed late but within sufficient time for the defendant to file a motion to correct the sentence on this basis." *Maddox*, slip op. at 38, 2000 WL 565093 at \* 18. The late filing of written reasons for departure is thus not fundamental error, while the failure to file any written reasons is fundamental error which requires a remand for imposition of a guidelines sentence. Id., slip op. at 35-39, 2000 WL 565093 at \*16-18. The Third District's failure to recognize this distinction puts its decision in Mr. Matchett's case in direct conflict with *Maddox* and the cases cited with approval in *Maddox*, namely *Pope* and *Ree*. The Third District's decision is also in direct conflict with this Court's holding in Donaldson v. State, 722 So. 2d 177 (Fla. 1998). "Where the trial judge fails to provide written reasons for the departure sentence, the

appellate court must reverse with instructions to resentence the defendant in accordance with the sentencing guidelines without possibility of departure." *Id.* at **189.** 

Finally, it does not matter that the claim regarding the trial court's failure to file written reasons for its departure was not preserved. This Court explicitly disagreed with that holding by the Third District when it disapproved, in *Maddox*, a similar holding by the First District in *Butler v. State*, 723 So, 2d 865 (Fla. 1st DCA *1998*). *See Maddox*, slip op. at 37 & n.15, 2000 WL 565093 at \* 17. As explained in *Maddox*, "the failure to file any reasons for imposing a departure sentence constitutes a fundamental sentencing error that can be raised on direct appeal during the window period, even in the absence of preservation." *Id.*, slip op. at 37 n.15.<sup>1</sup>

#### CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing facts, authorities and arguments, petitioner respectfully requests this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal and, upon review, to order the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The "window period" refers to direct appeals filed between the effective date of the Criminal Appeal Reform Act in 1996 and the effective date of the recent amendment to rule 3.800. *Maddox*, slip op. at 3-4. Mr. Matchett's initial brief was filed on or about October 27, 1998, well within the window period.

case remanded to the trial court for imposition of a guidelines sentence on count

two, in accordance with the decision in Maddox.