# **ORIGINAL**

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

THOMAS D HALL
JUL 2 1 2000

CASE NO. SCOO-1082

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

#### PATRICK MATCHETT

Petitioner,

THOMAS D. HALL
JUL 2 1 2000

-vs-

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

## THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

# ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA

#### RESPONDENT'S AMENDED BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

#### ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH

Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

#### MICHAEL J. NEIMAND

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar Number 0239437 Office of the Attorney General Department of Legal Affairs 444 Brickell Ave., Suite 950 Miami, Florida 33 13 1 (305) 377-5441; fax 377-5655

#### ROBERTA G. MANDEL

## **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

The Third District's opinion in the instant case is not in conflict with this Court's decision in Maddox v. State, 25 Fla. L. Weekly S367 (Fla. May 11, 2000), or with any other of this Court's decisions. This Court has consistently stated that a valid plea agreement constitutes clear and convincing grounds for the trial judge to impose a departure sentence. This Court in Maddox, made it clear that it had no intention from receding from its' previous cases which held that the failure to file written reasons for imposing a departure sentence pursuant to a negotiated plea agreement DOES NOT constitute reversible error. This Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

#### ARGUMENT

THE OPINION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT IN THIS CASE DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH MADDOX V. STATE, 25 Fla. L, Weekly S 367, FLA., MAY 11, 2000 OR WITH ANY OTHER OF THIS COURT'S PRIOR DECISIONS. (Restated).

In support of conflict jurisdiction, the Defendant argues that the Third District's opinion in this case expressly and directly conflicts with Court's decision in Maddox v. State, 25 Fla. L. Weekly \$367 (Fla. May 11, 2000); Pope v. State, 561 So. 2d 554 (Fla. 1990), and Ree v. State, 565 So. 2d 1329 (Fla. 1990). As the State will show herein, the Third District's opinion is not in conflict with any of this Court's prior decisions and, thus, this Court should decline to accept jurisdiction in this matter.

In <u>Maddox v. State</u>, this Court distinguished between departure sentences involving those sentences which involved a negotiated plea. This Court specifically stated that a valid plea agreement constitutes clear and convincing grounds for the trial judge to impose a departure sentence, citing to this Court's earlier decision in <u>State v. Williams</u>, 667 So. 2d 19 1, 193-194 (Fla. 1996).

The State completely agrees that the instant case is controlled by this Court's decision in Maddox v. State. However, a review of this Court's decision

in <u>Maddox</u> reveals that it is not in direct and express conflict with the case at hand. In <u>Maddox</u>, as noted above, this Court distinguished between those cases in which the defendants agreed to the imposition of a departure sentence in a plea agreement and those cases in which the defendants, did not agree to the imposition of a departure sentence in a plea agreement. In <u>Collins v. State</u>, 25 Fla. L. Weekly S500 (Fla. June 22, 2000), this Court specifically stated as follows with regard to its' earlier ruling in <u>Maddox</u>:

"We stated in <u>Maddox</u> that we did not intend to recede from our previous cases holding that the failure to file written reasons for imposing a departure sentence pursuant to a negotiated plea agreement does not constitute reversible error. <u>See Maddox</u>, <u>25 Fla. L. Weekly S367</u>, S372 (citing <u>State v. Williams</u>, 667 So. 2d 191, 193-194 (Fla. 1996)."

## 25 Fla. L. Weekly S 500, footnote #2.

This Court in Collins held that its' earlier decision in State v. Williams, supra, was inapposite since Collins did not agree to the imposition of a departure sentence in a negotiated plea. This Court should reach a similar conclusion in this case. The defendant's appeal did not fit into the narrow class of unpreserved sentencing errors which can be raised on direct appeal as fundamental error as defined by this Court's decision in Maddox v. State. The failure to file written reasons for departure is thus NOT fundamental error where the defendant agreed

to the imposition of the departure sentence in the plea agreement.

The defendant further argues that it doesn't matter that the claim regarding the trial court's failure to file written reasons for its departure was not preserved since this Court explicitly disagreed with that holding when it disapproved in <a href="Maddox">Maddox</a>, a similar holding by the First District in <a href="Butler v. State">Butler v. State</a>, 723 So. 2d 865 (Fla. 1 st DCA 1998). A review of the decision in <a href="Butler">Butler</a>, however reveals that the defendant in that case did not enter into any plea agreement in which he agreed to the imposition of the departure sentence. As such, the decision in <a href="Butler">Butler</a> is entirely distinguishable.

The Third District's decision is also not in conflict with either <u>Pope v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, or <u>Ree v. State</u>, supra, While it is true that commencing with <u>Pope v. State</u>, this Court has consistently mandated that noncompliance with the sentencing statutes and rules governing departure sentences should be addressed on direct appeal, even absent a contemporaneous objection in the departure context, this Court distinguishes between those departure sentences which are based on a negotiated plea from those cases in which the defendants didn't agree to the imposition of a departure sentence in a plea agreement. <u>See Maddox v. State</u>, 25 Fla. L. Weekly at S372.

## **CONCLUSION**

Based upon the authorities and arguments cited herein, this Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.